
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
January 5, 2012, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 1, 2011 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 12-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal 


Year Ending June 30, 2011 (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Capital Debt Reduction Charge analysis (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
D. Discuss/Action re Introduction to FY 2012-13 Operating and Capital 


Improvement Budget Process (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re District radios / Crystal Communications lease (Est. time 15 


min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Resolution 12-02, Authorizing the General Manager to 


Accept Capital Improvement Project 2012 and to Sign and Record a Notice of 
Completion (Est. time 5 min.) 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 20 min.) 
 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 
 
B. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance 


Evaluation 
 Title: Legal Counsel 
 
C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance 


Evaluation 
 Title: General Manager 
 


 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
December 1, 2011 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Nancy Thorington, District Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 


p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Holmer seconded.  
Motion carried 5-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 3, 2011 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 
D. Approve Resolution 11-29, Authorizing Adoption of Plan Restatement (VALIC 


457 Plan)  
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:31 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:31 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:31 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures.  The GM gave a 


brief overview of this item, but further discussion was deferred to Closed Session.  


B. (6:32 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Adding Direct Installation Option to Toilet Rebate 
Program.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No 
action was taken.  


C. (6:44 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District radios.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to go forward with a 180-day 
termination letter to Crystal Communications.  


D. (7:12 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Review of the 2012-18 Capital Improvement 
Program.  The GM made a PowerPoint presentation on this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  No action was taken.  


E. (7:54 p.m.) Discussion/Action re 2012 Organizational Meeting / Board Elections.   


 President:  Director Robb-Wilder nominated Director Quigley to be President.  Director 
Schaap nominated Director Robb-Wilder to be President.  Discussion ensued.  Director 
Robb-Wilder was voted President by a vote of 4-0-1 (Director Robb-Wilder abstained 
from the vote.) 


 Vice President: Director Quigley nominated himself.  Director Holmer also nominated 
Director Quigley to be Vice President. 


 Financial Coordinator:  Director Quigley nominated Director Holmer to be Financial 
Coordinator.  Board discussion ensued. 


Director Quigley was voted Vice President and Director Holmer was 
voted Financial Coordinator on a single vote for both positions of 5-0. 


** At 8:03 a brief recess was taken.  The meeting reconvened at 8:08 p.m. ** 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:08 p.m.) 
 
The GM reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. The rainy season is here 
5. 2012 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Sonoma County Water Agency Water Rights Permit Revision Protest 
9. Gantt Chart 
 
Board questions ensued. 
 


 2







 3


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:21 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:21 p.m.) 
 
At 8:21 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:22 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 2  


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9 p.m.) 
 
1. Radios / Crystal Communications rent issue 
2. CDR increase analysis 
3. Rio Vista saddle failures 
4. Budget introduction; appointment of ad hoc Budget Committee 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:03 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:31 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:31 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:08 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:21 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:21 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 2 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 
 
 Subject: Resolution 12-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending 


June 30, 2011 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 Approve Resolution 12-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 


2011. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 (Preparation of the FY 10-11 Audit cost $6,498.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


Our FY 2010-11 Audit was directed by Derek Rampone of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, 
assisted by other members of the firm.  Mr. Rampone will be available by telephone to 
answer any questions you have about the Audit.   
 
In addition to the Audit report, please review the attached Management Report and 
Auditor’s Communication Letter, which contains the auditor’s recommended changes to 
the District’s internal control procedures and the District’s responses to those 
recommendations.  Some of the recommendations are carryovers from last year’s Audit. 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution 12-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011.  
 







 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 


MANAGEMENT REPORT 
AND 


AUDITOR’S COMMUNICATION LETTER 
 
 


June 30, 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 







 


 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
June 30, 2011 


 
 
 
 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
Transmittal Letter ......................................................................................................................... 1 
 
Required Communication ............................................................................................................. 3 
 
Current Year Recommendations: 
 Significant Deficiencies: 
 2011-01 Lack of defacement on petty cash reimbursements .............................................. 5 
 2011-02 Incomplete I-9 Forms ........................................................................................... 5 
 2011-03 Lack of timely rent collection............................................................................... 5 
 2011-04 Lack of purchase order policy enforcement ......................................................... 6 
 2011-05 Approved invoices not reconciled to receiving reports ........................................ 6 
 2011-06 Lack of segregation of duties................................................................................ 6 
 2011-07 Lack of sequential and numerical check control .................................................. 7 
              


 
 


Status of Prior Year Recommendations....................................................................................... 8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











 


1 
OFFICES: BEVERLY HILLS · CULVER CITY · SANTA MARIA 


 
MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF C.P.A.’S · CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS · CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS 


 
 


   


PARTNERS COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT SERVICES
RONALD A LEVY, CPA 9107 WILSHIRE BLVD. SUITE 500 5800 E. HANNUM, SUITE E
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210 CULVER CITY, CA  90230
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA TEL:  310.670.2745 TEL:  310.670.2745 


 FAX: 310.670.1689 FAX:  310.670.1689 
 www.mlhcpas.com www.mlhcpas.com


      


 
December 20, 2011 
 
To the Honorable Board of Directors 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Guerneville, California 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Sweetwater Springs Water District 
(District), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the District’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been 
identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be significant deficiencies. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of 
deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We do 
not consider any of the deficiencies presented in the current year recommendations section to be material 
weaknesses. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiencies presented in the current year recommendations section as 
Findings 2011-1 through 2011-7 to be significant deficiencies in internal control. 
 
The District’s written responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the current year 
recommendations section. We did not audit the District’s responses and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on them. In addition, we would be pleased to discuss the recommendations in further detail at 
your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing these 
recommendations. 







 


 
 
 
 


2


 
We have included in this letter a summary of communication with the members of the Board of Directors 
as required by professional auditing standards. We would like to thank the District’s management and 
staff for the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during the course of our engagement. The 
accompanying communications and recommendations are intended solely for the information and use of 
management, the members of the Board of Directors, and others within the District, and are not intended 
to be and should not be used by anyone other these specified parties. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM, LLP 
Culver City, California 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


  
OFFICES: BEVERLY HILLS · CULVER CITY · SANTA MARIA 


 
MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF C.P.A.’S · CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS · CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS 


 


3


 
   


PARTNERS COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT SERVICES
RONALD A LEVY, CPA 9107 WILSHIRE BLVD. SUITE 500 5800 E. HANNUM, SUITE E
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210 CULVER CITY, CA  90230
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA TEL:  310.670.2745 TEL:  310.670.2745 


 FAX: 310.670.1689 FAX:  310.670.1689 
 www.mlhcpas.com www.mlhcpas.com


      


 
December 20, 2011 
 
To the Honorable Board of Directors 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Guerneville, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2011. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with the information about our responsibilities under auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as certain information related to the 
planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our engagement 
letter to you dated June 15, 2010.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.   As discussed 
in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements, two new accounting pronouncements were 
adopted during the fiscal year. The new pronouncements are Government Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions and 
Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus.  The implementation of Statement No. 54 had an 
effect on District’s financial statements, whereas Statement No. 59 did not. 
 


Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimate affecting the District’s financial 
statements was: 


Management’s estimate of the other postemployment benefits payable is based on 
industry guidelines and actuarial tables. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions 
used to develop the other postemployment benefits payable in determining that it is 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.   


Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 







 


  
 


4


Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
Management has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a 
result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated December 20, 2011. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors.  However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
 
Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District and management of the Sweetwater Springs Water District and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM, LLP 
Culver City, California 
 







 


CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Significant Deficiencies 
 
2011-01 Finding – Lack of defacement on petty cash reimbursements: 


During our review of petty cash reimbursements, we noted that invoices/receipts were not 
defaced as “paid” after they had been reimbursed. 
 
Effect: 
If the District does not deface paid invoices/receipts properly, invoices/receipts that have already 
been reimbursed could be resubmitted for reimbursement. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that all reimbursed invoices/receipts be properly defaced with a “Paid” stamp, 
date of payment, the dollar amount, and approval signature written in ink on each reimbursed 
invoice/receipt at the time of reimbursement. 


 
Management’s Response: 
In response to last year’s audit recommendation on this same issue, staff did endeavor to mark 
Petty Cash disbursements as “paid.”  More care will be taken, however, to ensure original 
receipts are submitted.  Also, we can order a stamp. 
 
 


2011-02 Finding – Incomplete I-9 Forms: 
During our test of payroll, we noted that three Form I-9’s were inadequately completed. 
 
Effect: 
The U.S. Government requires that all U.S. employers must complete and retain a Form I-9 for 
each individual employee they hire for employment in the United States. Without adequate 
completion of Form I-9’s, the District is incompliant with U.S. Government requirements. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that Form I-9’s not only be adequately completed for future employees but also 
for all existing employees. 


 
Management’s Response: 
In response to last year’s audit recommendation on this same issue, staff did endeavor to clean 
up the I-9s.  Staff will ensure the missing information found as part of this Audit are completed. 
 
 


2011-03 Finding – Lack of timely rent collection: 
During our test of rental collections, we noted that the District does not have a procedure in place 
to ensure timely collection of rent from one lessee. 
 
Effect: 
When rent receipts are not collected in a timely manner, a misstatement of the District’s financial 
position may occur. Also, outstanding lease receivable accounts could be an indication of a 
misappropriation of funds.  
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District periodically review the aging of the lease receivable and 
implement a policy of collecting on the lease receivable. 


5 
 







 


 
Management’s Response: 
As noted in staff’s response to this same recommendation in last year’s Audit, The District could 
pursue formal action against Crystal Communications (the delinquent lessee), but our 
relationship with them is unique: this lessee provides our radio communication.  In December 
staff started the process to get Crystal back on track with rental payments or terminate their lease 
if they don’t pay what they owe. 
 
 


2011-04 Finding – Lack of purchase order policy enforcement: 
During our test of cash disbursements, we noted that purchase orders were not issued for 
purchases over $300, or for tools, equipment, and capital assets, which is not in accordance with 
the District’s purchasing policy.   
 
Effect: 
Without adhering to an established purchase order policy, it is difficult for the District’s 
management to uniformly apply responsible purchasing standards in regards to the use of public 
funds. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District require all employees to follow the current purchasing policy. 
 
Management’s Response: 
As noted in staff’s response to this same recommendation in last year’s Audit, because the 
General Manager approves every payment – many for amounts greater than $300 that aren’t 
required to have a purchase order per District policy – the use of purchase orders is not 
particularly useful to the District and is easily overlooked.  Staff intends to develop an 
appropriate purchasing policy more in sync with current practices. 
 
 


2011-05 Finding – Approved invoices not reconciled to receiving reports: 
During our test of cash disbursements, we noted that shipping/packing slips were not being 
compared/reconciled to actual invoices prior to payment.   
 
Effect: 
Without verifying that approved invoices reconcile to purchase orders and receiving reports, it is 
difficult to determine if payments are for goods received. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District ensure that all approved invoices are signed off by the employee 
who received the goods and that all shipping/packing slips be attached as supporting 
documentation. 


 
Management’s Response: 
As noted in staff’s response to this same recommendation in last year’s Audit, staff agreed to and 
did try to reconcile at least the larger packing slips, both when the items are received and when 
the invoice is received.  However, that effort did not include initialing the packing slips.  Staff 
will try to initial the packing slips as checked and reconciled with invoices. 
 
 


2011-06 Finding – Lack of segregation of duties: 
During our review of internal control, we noted: 


 6
 







 


  
 


7


 
a. Journal entries were not reviewed and approved by anyone other than the preparer. 
b. Bank reconciliations were not reviewed and approved by anyone other than the preparer. 
c. Online vendor payments through QuickBooks were all done by a single employee. 
d. Only one employee had access to and operates QuickBooks. 
 
Effect: 
When there is a lack of segregation of duties, there is a greater chance for a misappropriation of 
funds to occur and to go undetected. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District implement procedures that will allow for the proper segregation 
of duties. 
 
Management’s Response: 
As noted in staff’s response to this same recommendation in last year’s Audit, the District’s 
small staff does not provide for multiple levels of accounting review for all transactions.  It is not 
anticipated that more staff will be added for this purpose. 
 
 


2011-07 Finding – Lack of sequential and numerical check control: 
While conducting cash disbursements testing, we noted that checks were written out of sequence 
and that checks with duplicate check numbers were issued. 
 
Effect: 
Difficulties may be encountered during the reconciliation of bank statements and it is difficult to 
track checks that are issued out of sequence. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that cash disbursements control procedures be designed to be practicable and to 
provide reasonable assurance that no unauthorized payments are made, all liabilities are timely 
paid, and payments are accurately recorded.  These controls include accounting for the 
sequential ordering of checks as they are released for use, prior to preparation.  We recommend 
that strict numerical control be kept over all checks issued and that checks be issued in sequence 
as much as possible. 
 
Management’s Response: 
The finding above results from check numbers assigned by online services for electronic 
transactions, such as ADP payroll checks and Quickbooks online banking.  However, the use of 
duplicate check numbers poses no issue to staff in reconciling bank statements because 
statements are reconciled based on check amounts, not check numbers.  Having said that, staff 
will try to do a better job of accounting for checks numbers in our in-office checkbook, including 
accounting for voided checks. 







 


STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2010-01 Finding – Lack of defacement on petty cash reimbursements: 


During our review of petty cash reimbursements, we noted that invoices/receipts were not 
defaced as “paid,” after they had been reimbursed. 
 
Effect: 
If the District does not deface the paid invoices/receipts properly, invoices/receipts that have 
already been reimbursed could be resubmitted for reimbursement. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that all reimbursed invoices/receipts be properly defaced with a “Paid” stamp, 
date of payment, the dollar amount, and approval signature written in ink on each reimbursed 
invoice/receipt at the time of reimbursement. 
 
Status: 
Partially implemented – see Finding 2011-01. 


 
2010-02 Finding – Incorrect wage rates: 


During our test of payroll, we noted that the 11/13/09 payroll wage rates for field workers were 
input incorrectly. 
 
Effect: 
Incorrect wage rates in the system will result in incorrect payments to employees. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District have another employee review payroll data on a regular basis to 
ensure that all personnel information is current and that all wage rates are correct.  
 
Status: 
Implemented 
 


2010-03 Finding – Incomplete I-9 forms: 
During our test of payroll, we noted that two I-9 forms were not signed by the employee, six I-9 
forms did not have the documentation sections filled out completely, one I-9 form was not 
signed by the employer, and one I-9 form was not on file.  
 
Effect: 
Missing or incomplete I-9 forms could result in fines if the District is to be audited by the 
Department of Justice. Also, by not retaining a completed I-9 form, it is impossible to verify if 
the employee is eligible to work in the United States of America. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District ensure that all personnel forms are obtained and retained in each 
employee’s personnel file or other secure location, for future verification. 


 
Status: 
Partially implemented – see Finding 2011-02. 
 
 
 
 


8 
 







 


STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 


2010-04 Finding – Lack of payroll review: 
During our test of payroll, we noted that there was no review of payroll (by someone other than 
the preparer) prior to submission for payment. 
 
Effect: 
When a review of payroll by a Supervisor or other responsible employee is not performed 
regularly, a misappropriation or error in the payroll computations may occur and go undetected. 
 
Recommendation: 
Payroll is a likely area for numerous errors and possible irregularities to occur due to the number 
of calculations involved. Better segregation of duties will enhance controls to detect any such 
errors and irregularities and provide for much greater safeguarding of assets. We recommend 
that the District complete payroll reviews prior to processing/submission of payroll data, by 
someone other than the preparer. 
 
Status: 
Implemented 
 


2010-05 Finding – Lack of inventory monitoring/accounting: 
During our audit of the District’s inventory, we noted that the District did not maintain a list of 
items stored as inventory, and the District did not perform an annual physical count at fiscal 
year-end. 
 
Effect: 
Lack of monitoring over inventory may lead to misstatement of inventory amounts and a 
misappropriation of assets. 


 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District maintain records of inventory and implement a control policy 
over inventory count for each fiscal year to ensure that all inventory is accounted for. 
 
Status: 
Implemented 
 


2010-06 Finding – Discrepancies in cash drawer balances: 
During our audit of the District’s petty cash, we noted that there was an overage of $26.92 in one 
of the cash drawers, and an underage of $19.17 in the other cash drawer.   
 
Effect: 
Lack of accuracy in cash drawers could indicate a misappropriation of assets. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District review drawer cash counts on a daily basis to monitor for 
overages/underages and to track any trends in balances. 
 
Status: 
Implemented 
 
 
 


  9
 







 


STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
2010-07 Finding – Lack of timely rent collection: 


During our test of rent collections, we noted that the District does not have a procedure in place 
to ensure timely collection of rent from one lessee. 
 
Effect: 
When rent receipts are not collected in a timely manner, a misstatement of the District’s financial 
position may occur. Also, outstanding lease receivable accounts could be an indication of a 
misappropriation of funds.  
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District periodically review the aging of the lease receivable and 
implement a policy of collecting on the lease receivable. 
 
Status: 
Not implemented – see Finding 2011-03. 


 
2010-08 Finding – Lack of purchase order policy enforcement: 


During our test of cash disbursements, we noted that purchase orders were not being issued for 
purchases over $300, or for tools, equipment, and capital assets, which is not in accordance with 
the District’s purchasing policy.   
 
Effect: 
Without adhering to an established purchase order policy, it is difficult for the District’s 
management to uniformly apply responsible purchasing standards in regards to the use of public 
funds. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District require all employees to follow the current purchasing policy. 
 
Status: 
Not implemented – see Finding 2011-04. 
 


2010-09 Finding – Approved invoices not reconciled to receiving reports: 
During our test of cash disbursements, we noted that shipping/packing slips were not being 
compared/reconciled to the actual invoices, prior to payment.   
 
Effect: 
Without verifying that approved invoices reconcile to purchase orders and receiving reports (and 
attaching such reports), it is difficult to determine if this step has been completed or if payments 
are for goods received. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District ensure that all approved invoices are signed off by the employee 
who received the goods and that all shipping/packing slips be attached as supporting 
documentation. 


 
Status: 
Partially implemented – see Finding 2011-05. 
 
 


 10
 







 


  
 


11


STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
2010-10 Finding – Lack of segregation of duties: 


During our review of internal control, we noted: 
 
a. Journal entries were not reviewed and approved by anyone other than the preparer. 
b. Bank reconciliations were not reviewed and approved by anyone other than the preparer. 
c. Online vendor payments through QuickBooks were all done by a single employee. 
d. Only one employee had access to and operates QuickBooks. 
 
Effect: 
When there is a lack of segregation of duties, there is a greater chance for a misappropriation of 
funds to occur and to go undetected. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District implement procedures that will allow for the proper segregation 
of duties. 
 
Status: 
Not implemented – see Finding 2011-06. 


 
2010-11 Finding – Lack of petty cash recording on balance sheet: 


During our audit of the District’s petty cash, we noted that there were two cash boxes in the front 
desk with balances of $100 each (total $200), but were not recorded in the general ledger.   
 
Effect: 
Lack of recording of petty cash may lead to a misstatement on the balance sheet and a 
misappropriation of assets could occur and go undetected. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District record the petty cash dollar amounts in the general ledger. 
 
Status: 
Implemented 
 


2010-12 Finding – Payment not approved: 
During our review of credit card statements/payments, we noted that one payment was not 
approved.   
 
Effect: 
If the District does not approve its outgoing payments, unauthorized payment and 
misappropriation of assets could occur. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the District ensure that all invoices be reviewed, approved, and signed by a 
responsible official before being submitted for payment. 
 
Status: 
Implemented 







Resolution No. 12-01 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING THE FINAL 


AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011 
 


 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District is required to have 
annual audits performed relative to the spending of public funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP provides said auditing service 
and is under contract with the District to perform such audits. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of 
the Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the audit as prepared by 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim for the year ending June 30, 2011, and accepts the 
information contained therein. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors 
of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on January 5, 2012, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


JUNE 30, 2011 
 







 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


JUNE 30, 2011 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 


FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report ......................................................................................................................... 1 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ......................................................................................................... 3 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 
  Comparative Statement of Net Assets ..................................................................................................... 10 
 
  Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets ........................................ 11 
 
  Comparative Statement of Cash Flows ................................................................................................... 12 
 
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements ....................................................................................................... 14 
 
Required Supplementary Information: 
   
  Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits ....................................................... 28 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
   Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an  
   Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with  
 Government Auditing Standards ................................................................................................................ 29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







1 
 


OFFICES: BEVERLY HILLS · CULVER CITY · SANTA MARIA 
 


MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF C.P.A.’S · CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS · CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS 


 


 
   


PARTNERS COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT SERVICES 
RONALD A LEVY, CPA 9107 WILSHIRE BLVD. SUITE 500 5800 E. HANNUM, SUITE E 
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210 CULVER CITY, CA  90230 
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA TEL:  310.273.2745  TEL:  310.670.2745 


 FAX: 310.670.1689 FAX:  310.670.1689  
 www.mlhcpas.com www.mlhcpas.com


 


 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Guerneville, California 
 
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Sweetwater Springs Water District 
(District) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, as listed in the table of contents.  These basic 
financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Sweetwater Springs Water District as of June 30, 2011, and the changes in financial 
position and cash flows, for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
As discussed in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements, effective July 1, 2010, the District 
adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 59, 
Financial Instruments Omnibus. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 20, 
2011, on our consideration of the Sweetwater Springs Water District’s internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in 
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 
 







2 
 
 


 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
 


 
 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
December 20, 2011 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 3 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
FY 2010-11 


Management Discussion & Analysis 
(Unaudited) 


 
Management has prepared this overview of the financial impact of the activities of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  It serves as an introduction to the financial 
statements contained in the audit report and a summary of major activities of the District for the fiscal year.   
 
The discussion begins with a selection of financial activities that management considers worthy of special 
note for FY 2010-11.  It is not intended to be an exhaustive list.  The condensed financial statements that 
follow provide a complete financial summary of the audit report.  Following the financial statements are 
additional details on capital spending, District debt and future plans of the District. 
 


 
I.  SELECTED FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES IN 2010-11 
 
Net income for the fiscal year before depreciation expense and capital grant funding was $800,351 
compared to $682,315 in FY 2009-10.   
 
Net assets at fiscal year end were $10,021,858, an increase of $1,807,687 from FY 2009-10. 
 
In FY 2010-11, the District had $240,000 in surplus operating revenues available to transfer to the Capital 
Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF) for future capital spending. 
 
District cash at the end of the fiscal year totaled $5,456,128, $664,403 less than last fiscal year.  Of this 
amount, $4,023,083 is considered available for spending on future capital improvement projects. 
 
 
 
SELECTED EXPENDITURES 
 


• The District spent $2,283,547 on major capital improvement projects  and $1,064 on equipment.  
The financial impact of this capital spending was a $1,707,814 increase in capital assets because 
capital spending outpaced depreciation1 of existing capital assets.  Conversely, cash decreased by 
$664,403 because more cash was spent than received via operations, grants, or loan proceeds. 


 
• The District spent $25,722 on In-House Construction projects .  These projects are too small to 


be capitalized, but are major repairs to District infrastructure.  As such, these expenditures impact 
Operating Expenses. 


 
• The District spent $1,089,756 on capital debt principal and interest payments , about the same 


as the prior fiscal year.   
 


• Operating Expenses  were $1,551,186, not including depreciation, which is slightly less than the 
prior fiscal year.  


 
• Extra payment made to CalPERS.   The District spent $230,511 to pay off existing unfunded 


PERS liability and new unfunded PERS liability incurred as part of the District’s change from PERS’ 
2% @ 60 defined benefit plan to PERS’ 2% @ 55 plan.  The Plan change was negotiated as part of 
the Memorandum of Understanding with the International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary 
Local 39, that took effect on July 1, 2010.   


 


                                           
1
 Depreciation expense (a non-cash, accounting expense) totaled $576,797 in FY 2010-11. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 4 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
FY 2010-11 


 
SELECTED REVENUES 


• The District received $1,584,133 in grant proceeds  from the Community Development 
Commission (CDC) to help fund designated capital improvement projects.  This is recorded as 
“Capital grants” on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. 


 
• The District received $2,018,065 from Water Sales . 


 
• The District received $50,830 in one-time Construction New Services flat charges  from a large 


low-income housing project (Fife Creek Commons) being constructed in downtown Guerneville.  
This sum was included with the other normal flat charges collected (on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes to Net Assets) and explains the one-time increase in flat charge collections 
for FY 2010-11.   


 
• Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) reimbursements.  The District joined the California 


Urban Water Conservation Counsel (CUWCC) in October, 2010 at the request of the Sonoma 
County Water Agency.  In return for our membership, SCWA contributed a total of $13,089 to 
reimburse the District for the ongoing costs of the Toilet Rebate Program and annual CUWCC 
membership dues.  SCWA will continue to reimburse the District for these costs thru 2019. 


 
 
DISTRICT RESERVES 
 
At fiscal year end, the District had $4,023,0832 available for spending on capital improvement projects in 
accordance with the District’s Reserve Policy adopted in 2009.  It is the goal of the District to finance capital 
projects with operating surpluses.  Until that goal is reached, the District must rely on grants, loans and 
policy reserves to pay for capital spending in excess of operating surpluses. 
 
 
II.  BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Financial Statements of the District report information about the District using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies.  These statements offer short- and long-term financial 
information about its activities.  The two statements contained in this management discussion and analysis 
are condensed versions of the statements in the audit report: 
  
The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities and provides information 
about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations of the District’s 
creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure 
of the District, and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. 
 
All of the current fiscal year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.  This statement measures the success of the District’s operations 
over the past year and can be used to determine the District’s creditworthiness and whether the District has 
successfully recovered all its costs through its user fees and other charges. 
 
Not included in this management discussion but required in the Audit report is the Statement of Cash Flows.  
The primary purpose of this statement is to provide information about the District’s cash receipts and cash 
payments during the reporting period.  It provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, 
what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.   


                                           
2
 Source: 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted report 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 5 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
FY 2010-11 


STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
 
A summary of the District’s Statement of Net Assets (Balance Sheet) in FY 2010-11 compared to FY 2009-
10 is presented in Table 1 below.  Generally, an increase in the District’s net assets – the difference 
between assets and liabilities – is a good indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating.  The District’s net assets increased by $1,807,686 to $10,021,858 at FYE 2011, up from 
$8,214,171 at FYE 2010.   
 


 


FYE 2011 FYE 2010 $ Change % Change


Cash 5,456,128 6,120,531 (664,403) -10.9%


Capital Assets 18,210,629 16,502,815 1,707,814 10.3%
Other Assets 976,349 599,674 376,675 62.8%


Total Assets 24,643,106 23,223,020 1,420,086 6.1%


Bond & Loan principal debt 
outstanding 14,043,368 14,475,781 (432,413) -3.0%
Other long-term liabilities 59,771 137,562 (77,791) -56.5%
Other short-term liabilities 509,109 395,506 113,603 28.7%


Total Liabilities 14,612,248 15,008,849 (396,601) -2.6%


Invested in capital assets, net 
of related debt 4,167,261 1,942,034 2,225,227 114.6%
Restricted 833,030 1,508,003 (674,973) -44.8%
Unrestricted 5,021,567 4,764,134 257,433 5.4%


Total Net Assets 10,021,858 8,214,171 1,807,687 22.0%


Condensed Statement of Net Assets
Table 1


 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 6 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
FY 2010-11 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES TO NET  ASSETS 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets (Income Statement) provides 
additional information concerning revenues and expenses that impacted net assets.  Table 2 below 
compares the District’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for FY 2010-11 
versus FY 2009-10. 
 


FYE 2011 FYE 2010 $ Change % Ch ang e


W ater Sales 2,018,065 2,005,265 12,800 0.6%
Property Tax Assessm ent (flat charge) 810,292 762,521 47,771 6.3%
Non-Operating Revenues 172,875 183,384 (10,509) -5.7%


Total Revenu es 3,001,232 2,951,170 50,062 1.7%


Operating Expenses:


   Salar ies and Benefi ts 1,085,675 1,069,029 16,646 1.6%
   Services and Supplies 465,511 531,647 (66,136) -12.4%


T otal Op erating  Expenses 1,551,186 1,600,676 (49,490) - 3.1%


Non-Operating Expenses:
   Interest 649,695 668,179 (18,484) -2.8%


T otal N on-Op erating  Expenses 649,695 668,179 (18,484) - 2.8%


To tal Expenses 2,200,881 2,268,855 (67,974) -3.0%


In co me befo re Capital Grants and 
Depreciation Exp en se 800,351 682,315 118,036 17.3%


Capital Grants 1,584,133 575,304 1,008,829 175.4%
Depreciation Expens e (576,797) (534,225) (42,572) 8.0%


Ch ang e in Net Assets (Net Income) 1,807,687 723,394 1, 084,293 149.9%


 
As the table shows, income before capital grants and depreciation expense was $800,351, or $118,036 
(17.3%) more than FY 2009-10, mostly due to increases in flat charges and decreases in Services and 
Supplies.    
 
Total revenues were $3,001,232, about the same as the prior fiscal year.  Water sales were up slightly from 
the prior fiscal year even as District customers used less water.  Non-operating revenues were down 
$10,509, from the prior fiscal year.  The main components of non-operating revenue on a year to year basis 
are interest income, rent received from cell tower tenants on the District’s Mt. Jackson property, and 
construction of new services during the fiscal year.  Interest rates on District cash remain sluggish.  Rents 
are up, but continue to reflect a growing receivable for Mt. Jackson tenant Crystal Communications, who 
had unpaid rents totaling $23,824 at fiscal year end and no clear timeline for paying past due amounts.  
“Other income” consists entirely of CDC/Redevelopment grant revenue -- $1,584,133 in FY 2010-11. 
 
On the expense side, total expenses decreased $67,974 (3%), mostly due to a decrease in Services and 
Supplies expenses.  Notably, distribution repairs were down $17,582 from the prior fiscal year, Water 
Treatment System maintenance was down $62,506, and government fees were also down $7,715.  Finally, 
as discussed earlier, the District made an extra payment to PERS of $230,511.  (See, Selected 
Expenditures on p. 3.)  However, this payment will be amortized over 15 years rendering its impact on the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes to Net Assets minimal.   
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 7 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
FY 2010-11 


After accounting for grant revenues and depreciation expense, the District’s Change in Net Assets, or Net 
Income, was $1,807,687 compared to $723,394 in FY 2009-10 – an increase of $1,084,292.  
 


 


III.  CAPITAL SPENDING 
 
In FY 2010-11, the District continued to make progress on the projects identified in the current Capital 
Improvement Program.  The District spent $2,283,547 on major construction projects, broken down as 
follows: 
 


Project Project Description 
Amount spent FY 


2010-11 
% complete at 


FYE 2011 


CIP IV-B, Project 1 
W.R. Forde 


65,000 gallon tank and booster 
station; 3100 lf of main on Bonita 
Terrace and Riverlands Road; 
replacement of the Handy Andy 
booster feed line (300 lf); and fire 
protection 


$878,249 
100%  
(Project total: 
$1,353,272) 


CIP IV-B, Project 2 
KAT Construction 
W.R. Forde 


600 lf of 6” main replacement in 
Monte Rio (River Blvd., Alder, 
Willow, Railroad, Pebble Way, and 
Heller); and fire protection; Rio Vista 
addition 


$1,313,905 
95%  
(Project total: App. 
$1,411,000) 


CIP 2012 – 
Foothill/Monte Rio 
portion 


1000 lf of new 8” main and 
appurtenances from B Street 
northwesterly to end of existing 8” 
main and make connection to other 
side of Foothill where section of 
road is closed to thru traffic 


$84,402 
10% 
(Project total: App. 
$671,000) 


CIP 2012 – 
Eastern/Western 
(Guerneville) 
portion 


3,100 lf of main replacement on 
Western, Eastern, and Northern 
Avenues, and Orchard Lane 


$6,991 
1% 
(Project total: App. 
$684,000) 


 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 8 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
FY 2010-11 


CIP IV-B, Project 1 / W.R. Forde Construction 
(Completed June, 2011 – app. $1,304,000) 


 


Replacement of 1600 lf of 6” main and services on Riverlands Road 
(Guerneville) 


Replacement of 450 lf of 6” main on a cross-country run from Hwy. 116 up 
to Old Monte Rio Road in Guerneville (“Handy Andy” line) 


Replacement of 375 lf of 6” main on Alpine Terrace (Schoolhouse tank 
supply line) 


Installation of 1,500 lf of 4” main and services on Bonita Terrace 


Installation of 65,000-gallon steel tank at Schoolhouse site 


Replacement of 300 lf of 4” main on a cross-country run from the 
Schoolhouse tank site to the Upper Schoolhouse tank site (supply line for 
Upper Schoolhouse tank) 


Installation of a 10,000-gallon concrete tank at Upper Schoolhouse site 


5 fire hydrants 


2” asphalt overlay on affected roads 


 
Except for the CIP 2012 – Eastern/Western project, all of these projects were recipients of Community 
Development Commission (CDC) 75% grant funding via application made to the Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Commission.  Grant proceeds from the Community Development Commission 
(CDC) totaled $1,584,134 in FY 2010-11.   
 
In addition to these capital projects, the District spent $25,722 on various in-house maintenance projects, 
which were not capitalized.  
 
The District also purchased a field pump costing $1,064.  
 
 
IV.  DISTRICT DEBT 
 
At the beginning of FY 2010-11, the District owed a total of $14,475,781 in bond debt, state loans, and a 
private placement loan.  The table below summarizes activity on the loans in FY 2010-11: 
 


DEBT TYPE ORIGINAL 
PRINCIPAL 


PRINCIPAL OWED 
JULY 1, 2010 


PRINCIPAL PAID 
FY 2010-11 


PRINCIPAL OWED 
JUNE 30, 2011 


Bonds $8,000,000 (1992-96) 
$4,000,000 (2003) $ 9,924,307 $ 212,000 $ 9,712,307 


State Loans $3,013,500 (1996) $ 1,692,030 $  21,057 $ 1,570,973 


Private 
Placement Loan 


$3,000,000 (2008) $ 2,859,444 $  99,356 $ 2,760,088 


  $14,475,781 $ 432,413 $ 14,043,368 


 
With interest, yearly payments on District bond and loan debt are approximately $1,089,756. 
 
In addition to bond debt and loans, during the fiscal year the District paid $85,000 to complete payment on a 
Construction Claim related to CIP Phase III.  A total of $235,000 was paid on this claim over 5 years. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 9 
Management Discussion & Analysis 
FY 2010-11 


 
V.  ECONOMIC FACTORS AND FY 2011-12 PROJECTED EXPEN DITURES 
 
District operations are only mildly affected by the greater economy.  The bulk of the District’s income is tied 
to water sales and flat charge revenue, both unaffected in any major way by economic events. District 
reserves are conservatively managed via the County of Sonoma’s investment pool and a CD at the 
Redwood Credit Union.  In FY 2010-11, interest rates remained low, but the loss in interest revenue is 
manageable.  Offsetting the minimal negative effects the poor economy has had on the District is the 
probability that the poor economy resulted in lower bids on the CIP 2012 project, saving the District money 
on a big-ticket capital expenditure.   
 
Perhaps the largest impact on the District’s financial future is the future of CDC/Redevelopment grant 
funding for District capital projects.  The State legislature is seeking to abolish redevelopment programs 
statewide, or at least redirect to the State a sizeable portion of redevelopment funds on an annual basis.  
Even without this proposed legislation, competition for redevelopment funds is increasing and the District 
has already received significant grant funding.   
 
Future capital project financing  will be as follows: Projected grant proceeds consist of the 75% grant 
funding from the CDC for the remainder of CIP IV-B, Project 2, for a portion of CIP 2012, and for all of CIP 
2013.  The District’s share of these projects will be financed with operating surpluses and District reserves 
above policy.  As discussed above, however, CDC/redevelopment funding is very uncertain for future 
District projects.  Longterm budgets call for funding capital projects beyond CIP 2013 entirely with District 
policy reserves, which are projected to last through FY 2016-17.  (See, District Reserves on p. 4). 
 
Water rates , the largest source of income for the District, were not increased in FY 2010-11 because of 
local economic conditions and as part of the agreement for grant funding from the CDC.  In FY 2011-12 
rates were increased by a 3% COLA.  Management has identified the need for additional revenue to bring 
funding for needed capital projects up to a sustainable level.  
 
Finally, Salary and Benefits , one of the largest expenses of the District, was not significantly impacted in 
FY 2010-11 by the expiration and subsequent renegotiation and approval of the union contract covering six 
District employees.  (Salary and benefits negotiated for union represented employees were extended to the 
four non-represented employees.)  The resulting contracts cover five years and have manageable salary 
and benefit provisions for future budgets.  
 
 
VI.  REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of the 
District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District at P.O. Box 48, Guerneville, California, 95446. 
 







Totals Totals


June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and investments 4,402,931$       4,386,078$       
Accounts receivable 361,326           237,159           
Rent receivable 23,824             9,424               
Flat charges receivables 66,647             66,360             
Inventory 56,836             30,000             
Prepaid expenses 43,893             28,525             


TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 4,955,457        4,757,546        


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Land 143,053           143,053           
Construction in progress 1,427,508        497,232           
Buildings and improvements 22,187,216       20,833,945       
Machinery and equipment 545,512           544,448           
Less-accumulated depreciation (6,092,660)       (5,515,863)       


TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 18,210,629       16,502,815       


OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses 414,823           228,206           
Restricted cash and investments 1,053,197        1,734,453        


TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS 1,468,020        1,962,659        


TOTAL ASSETS 24,634,106       23,223,020       


LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 252,193           132,850           
Accrued wages 15,936             13,155             
Accrued interest 220,167           226,450           
Customer deposits 15,725             15,275             
Road maintenance obligations 5,088               7,776               
Current portion of long term debt 452,699           517,413           


TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 961,808           912,919           


LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Compensated absences 52,141             48,747             
General obligation bonds payable 9,488,307        9,712,307        
California safe drinking water bonds payable 1,446,405        1,570,973        
Citizens business bank (COP) payable 2,655,957        2,760,088        
Other postemployment benefits payable 7,630               3,815               


TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 13,650,440       14,095,930       


TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,612,248       15,008,849       


NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,167,261        1,942,034        
Restricted 833,030           1,508,003        
Unrestricted 5,021,567        4,764,134        


TOTAL NET ASSETS 10,021,858$     8,214,171$       


                                                


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS


June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals at June 30, 2010


See accompanying notes to basic financial statements


10







Totals Totals


June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
Operating Revenues


Charges for services 2,018,065$       2,005,265$       


Total Operating Revenues 2,018,065        2,005,265        


Operating Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 1,085,675        1,069,029        
Service and supplies 465,511           531,647           
Depreciation 576,797           534,225           


Total Operating Expenses 2,127,983        2,134,901        


Operating Income (Loss) (109,918)          (129,636)          


Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 59,959             74,391             
Rents 82,444             87,294             
Other non-operating revenue 30,472             21,699             
Interest expense (649,695)          (668,179)          


Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (476,820)          (484,795)          


Net Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions and Special Items (586,738)          (614,431)          


Capital Contributions and Special Items
Capital grants 1,584,133        575,304           
Flat charges 810,292           762,521           


Total Capital Contributions and Special Items 2,394,425        1,337,825        


Change in Net Assets 1,807,687        723,394           


Total Net Assets, Beginning of Fiscal Year 8,214,171        7,490,777        


Total Net Assets, End of Fiscal Year 10,021,858$     8,214,171$       


With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011


COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT


See accompanying notes to basic financial statements


11







Totals Totals


June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
Cash Flows From Operating Activities


Cash received from customers 1,894,348$     2,170,387$     
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (375,692)         (654,147)         
Payments to employees and related items (1,277,670)      (1,024,801)      


Net cash flows provided by operating activities 240,986          491,439          


Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (2,284,611)      (1,097,377)      
Payment on long term debt (517,413)         (467,356)         
Interest payments (655,978)         (674,204)         
Capital grant contributions 1,584,133       575,304          


Net cash flows (used) by capital and related financing activities (1,873,869)      (1,663,633)      


Cash Flows From Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities
Flat charges 810,005          746,800          
Miscellaneous non-operating revenues 30,472            21,699            


Net cash provided by non-capital and related financing activities 840,477          768,499          


Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Rents 68,044            77,870            
Interest income 59,959            74,391            


Net cash flows provided by investing activities 128,003          152,261          


Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Investments (664,403)         (251,434)         


Cash and Investments, Beginning of Fiscal Year 6,120,531       6,371,965       


Cash and Investments, End of Fiscal Year 5,456,128$     6,120,531$     


Reconciliation of Cash and Investments to Amounts                                       
Reported on the Statement of Net Assets:


Cash and investments 4,402,931$     4,386,078$     
Restricted cash and investments 1,053,197       1,734,453       


5,456,128$     6,120,531$     


Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest expense during the fiscal year 649,695$        668,179$        


Interest capitalized during the fiscal year -$                -$                


(continued)


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010


See accompanying notes to basic financial statements


12







Totals Totals


June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010


Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided by Operations:


Operating income (loss) (109,918)$       (129,636)$       


Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:


Depreciation 576,797          534,225          
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:


Accounts receivable (124,167)         163,854          
Inventory (26,836)                              
Prepaid expenses (201,985)         28,525            


Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts payable 119,343          (127,508)         
Accrued wages 2,781              3,508              
Compensated absences 3,394              8,380              
Customer deposits payable 450                 1,268              
Road maintenance obligations (2,688)             5,008              
Other postemployment benefits payable 3,815              3,815              


Total Adjustments 350,904          621,075          


Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 240,986$        491,439$        


(Continued)


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010


See accompanying notes to basic financial statements


13







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


14 


Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) was formed on December 6, 1988 with Resolution #88-2184 
through an election under Section 30290 of the California State Water Code. The District supplies water services 
to residential and commercial users, and provides for connections to and the servicing of the delivering system. 
The District’s Board of Directors has the responsibility of overseeing the financial activities of the District.  
 
The District accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America as applicable to governments, in accordance with the uniform system of accounts for water utility 
special enterprise districts as prescribed by the State Controller in compliance with the government code of the 
State of California. 
 
B. Basis of Accounting 
 
The District follows the accrual basis of accounting. The District's policy is to record all assets, liabilities, revenues, 
and expenses on the accrual basis of accounting and the flow of economic resources measurement focus.  Under this 
method, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when the related liability is incurred. In 
these funds, receivables have been recorded as revenue and provisions have been made for uncollectible amounts. 
 
C. Proprietary Fund Accounting 
 
The District has one fund which is considered a proprietary fund. 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows. 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and 
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the District has opted to apply all 
applicable GASB pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and 
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) issued 
on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 
 
Operating revenues in the proprietary fund are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of 
the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that 
are essential to the primary operation of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 
 
D. Budgetary Reporting 
 
The annual budget is prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting utilized by the District. The budget is not 
legally required and therefore budget to actual information has not been presented, either as a statement or required 
or other supplementary information. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


15 


Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
E. Receivables 
 
Bad debts associated with accounts receivable for services are provided for by use of the allowance method. Other 
receivables, if any, are shown at the anticipated recoverable amount, unless otherwise noted. 
 
F. Flat Charges Receivable 
 
Flat charges receivable represent direct charges owed to the District by property owners. 
 
G. Inventories 
 
Inventory consists primarily of water meters, water pipes, valves and fittings. Inventory is valued at estimated cost. 
 
H. Capital Assets 
 
Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. 
Contributed assets are recorded at their fair value at the time of transfer to the District. Assets with a value of $1,000 
or less are expensed in the years acquired.  
 
Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation is 
recorded as an expense in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of 
Net Assets. The range of estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
 Water system 40 years 
 Leasehold improvements 7 years 
 Equipment 3-5 years 
 
I. Vacation and Sick Leave 
 
Vacation pay is accrued by the District in the period earned. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, accrued vacation pay 
amounted to $52,141 and $48,747 respectively. 
 
J. Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
 
K. New Accounting Pronouncement 
 
The District has implemented the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
No. 59 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


16 


Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
K. New Accounting Pronouncement (Continued) 


 
GASB Statement No. 59 – Financial Instruments Omnibus 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 59, “Financial 
Instruments Omnibus”. This Statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 
2010. The objective of this Statement is to update and improve existing standards regarding financial reporting 
and disclosure requirements of certain financial instruments and external investment pools for which significant 
issues have been identified in practice. The implementation of this Statement did not have an effect on these 
financial statements. 
 


Note 2:  Cash and Investments 
 
The cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on whether or not their 
use is restricted under the terms of District debt instruments or District agreements.  
 
The District's cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2011: 
 


Unrestricted Restricted Totals


Cash on hand 500$              -$               500$              
Cash in bank 120,171         18,946           139,117         
Cash and investments 4,282,260      1,034,251      5,316,511      


Total Cash and Investments 4,402,931$    1,053,197$    5,456,128$    


Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and investments 4,402,931$    
Restricted cash and investments 1,053,197      


Total       5,456,128$    
 


 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Sweetwater Springs Water District 
(District) by the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table 
also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where 
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of risk. This table does not address 
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the 
District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


17 


Note 2:  Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 


Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy (Continued) 
 


Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment


Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
State of California Obligations 5 years None None
CA Local Agency Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agencies 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper - Selected Agencies 270 days 25% 10%
Commercial Paper - Other Agencies 270 days 40% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements & 20 % of the base
  Securities Lending Agreements 92 days value of the portfolio None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% None
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
Time Deposits 5 years None None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None $  50 Million


 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in the 
market interest rates.  One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a 
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion 
of the portfolio is maturing or coming closer to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and 
liquidity needed for operations. 


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


18 


Note 2:  Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 


Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity: 
 


More 
12 Months 13 to 24 25-36 37-48 49-60 Than 60


Investment Type Totals or Less Months Months Months Months Months


County Treasury 4,683,826$   4,683,826$   -$      -$            -$      -$      -$      
Certificates of Deposit 632,685        632,685       


5,316,511$   4,683,826$   -$      632,685$     -$      -$      -$      


Remaining maturity (in Months)


 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code and the 
District’s investment policy, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type. 
 


Minimum Exempt
Legal From Not


Investment Type Amount Rating Disclosure AAA AA A Rated
County Treasury 4,683,826$   N/A -$           -$             -$          -$          4,683,826$     
Certificates of Deposit 632,685        632,685          


               Total 5,316,511$   -$           -$             -$          -$          5,316,511$     


Rating as of Fiscal Year End


 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer 
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  There is one investment (Redwood Credit Union 
Certificate of Deposit) that represent 5% or more of total District investments (other than Sonoma County 
Investment Pool). 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


19 


Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party.  The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than 
the following provision for deposits:  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure 
deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by 
a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The fair value of the pledged 
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  
California law also allows financial institutions to secure the District’s deposits by pledging first trust deed 
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 
 


As of June 30, 2011, the District’s deposits with financial institutions were not in excess of federal depository 
insurance limits. 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., 
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California Government Code and the District’s 
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit 
risk for investments.  With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct 
investments in marketable securities.  Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect 
investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as the Sonoma 
County Investment Pool). 
 
Note 3: Prepaid Expenses 
 
The District has paid $414,823, net of accumulated amortization, towards its unfunded pension obligation to the 
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). This prepayment is being amortized over a fifteen year period, which 
commenced in the 2004/2005 fiscal year. 
 


2011 2010
Total prepayment 502,609$       285,256$       


Amount amortized in current year (43,893)          (28,525)          


Balance as of June 30, 458,716         256,731         


Less: Current portion (43,893)          (28,525)          


414,823$       228,206$       
 


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


20 


Note 4: Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows: 
 


Balance at 
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions Transfers


Balance at                        
June 30, 2011


Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 143,053$       -$             -$         -$             143,053$        
Construction in progress 497,232         1,405,298    (475,022)      1,427,508       


Total capital assets, not being depreciated 640,285         1,405,298                     (475,022)      1,570,561       


Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Building and improvements 20,833,945    878,249       475,022        22,187,216     
Machinery and equipment 544,448         1,064           545,512          


Total capital assets, being depreciated 21,378,393    879,313                        475,022        22,732,728     


Accumulated depreciation 
Building and improvements (5,064,966)     (545,555)      (5,610,521)      


Machinery and equipment (450,897)        (31,242)        (482,139)         


Total accumulated depreciation (5,515,863)     (576,797)                                            (6,092,660)      


Total depreciable assets, net 15,862,530    302,516                        475,022        16,640,068     
Total capital assets, net 16,502,815$  1,707,814$  -$         -$             18,210,629$   


 
Depreciation expense of $576,797 and $532,225 were incurred and were recorded as an operating expense for 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 respectively. 
 
Note 5: Long-Term Debt 
 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011: 
 


Balance at Balance at Due Within
July 1, 2010 Additions Repayments June 30, 2011 One Year


1992 General Obligation Bonds 6,156,307$     -$              (160,000)$    5,996,307$     170,000$    
2003 General Obligation Bonds 3,768,000       (52,000)        3,716,000       54,000        
California Safe Drinking Bonds 1,692,030       (121,057)      1,570,973       124,568      
Citizens Business Bank Certificates                                       
  of Participation 2,859,444       (99,356)        2,760,088       104,131      
Construction Claim Payable 85,000            (85,000)                                          
Compensated Absences 48,747            3,394            52,141            
Other Postemployment Benefits 3,815              6,193            (2,378)          7,630              


Total 14,613,343$   9,587$          (519,791)$    14,103,139$   452,699$    


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


21 


Note 5: Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 


1992 General Obligation Bonds 
 


On November 6, 1990, the voters of the District authorized the issuance of general obligation bonds for the 
acquisition and improvements of the water system. On August 20, 1991, the District entered into an agreement with 
Citizens Utilities to purchase the water system for $6,500,000. The District financed the acquisitions with the bond 
proceeds in the amount of $7,000,000 received on April 8, 1992. $500,000 in additional bonds were issued in fiscal 
year 1993-94, $250,000 during fiscal year 1994-95, and $250,000 in fiscal year 1995-96. 
 


The bonds bear interest at 5% and mature on September 1, 2031. Principal payments are due annually on September 
1, and interest payments are due semi-annually on March 1, and September 1. The balance at June 30, 2011 is 
$5,996,307. 
 


Future debt service requirements on the 1992 General Obligation bonds are: 
 


Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total 


2012 170,000$              295,566$              465,566$              
2013 175,000                286,941                461,941                
2014 185,000                277,941                462,941                
2015 195,000                268,441                463,441                
2016 205,000                258,441                463,441                


2017-2021 1,185,000             1,124,205             2,309,205             
2022-2026 1,525,000             787,205                2,312,205             
2027-2031 1,885,000             357,705                2,242,705             


2032 471,307                11,783                  483,090                


Total 5,996,307$           3,668,228$           9,664,535$           
 


 


2003 General Obligation Bonds 
 


On April 29, 2003, and pursuant to Resolution No. 03-15, the District authorized the issuance of General Obligation 
Bond of 1990, Series 2003 in the principal amount of $4,000,000. The bond issued as a single fully registered bond 
and matures in installments of the same principal amounts on the same dates as the registered bonds it represents. 
Interest on the bond is 4.5% per annum, payable commencing on March 1, 2004 and semi-annually thereafter on 
September 1 and March 1 in each year to maturity. The balance at June 30, 2011 is $3,716,000. 
 


Future debt service requirements on the 2003 General Obligation bonds are: 
 


Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total 


2012 54,000$                166,005$              220,005$              


2013 57,000                  163,508                220,508                
2014 59,000                  160,897                219,897                
2015 62,000                  158,175                220,175                
2016 65,000                  155,318                220,318                


2017-2021 368,000                729,360                1,097,360             
2022-2026 460,000                636,525                1,096,525             
2027-2031 572,000                520,875                1,092,875             
2032-2036 713,000                376,987                1,089,987             
2037-2041 891,000                197,123                1,088,123             
2042-2043 415,000                18,877                  433,877                


Total 3,716,000$           3,283,650$           6,999,650$           


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


22 


Note 5: Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
California Safe Drinking Bonds Payable 
 
On June 24, 1993 the State Department of Water Resources provided a $2,870,000 and $400,000 loan to the District 
under the Safe Drinking Water Bond Act of 1986. The project financed by this loan consists of construction of three 
wells, interconnection of the system’s service area, and construction of five storage facilities and appurtenances. 
 
The bonds bear interest at 2.955% and mature on April 1, 2021 and 2022. Principal payments are due semi-annually 
on October 1 and April 1 including interest. A 5% administrative fee is included in the principal amount. The 
balances at June 30, 2011 are $1,368,337 and $206,636 respectively. 
 
The remaining debt service payments are as follows: 


 
Fiscal Year Ended


June 30, Principal Interest Total 


2012 106,884$              39,733$                146,617$              
2013 110,223                36,395                  146,618                
2014 113,428                33,190                  146,618                
2015 116,805                29,814                  146,619                
2016 120,229                26,389                  146,618                


2017-2021 657,338                75,753                  733,091                
2022 143,430                3,189                    146,619                


Total 1,368,337$           244,463$              1,612,800$           


 
 


Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total 


2012 17,684$                5,871$                  23,555$                
2013 18,233                  5,321                    23,554                  
2014 18,764                  4,789                    23,553                  
2015 19,322                  4,231                    23,553                  
2016 19,891                  3,663                    23,554                  


2017-2021 108,742                9,027                    117,769                


Total 202,636$              32,902$                235,538$              


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


23 


Note 5: Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Citizens Business Bank Certificates of Participation Payable 
 
On July 3, 2008, Citizens Business Bank as assigned from Municipal Finance Corporation provided a $3,000,000 
loan to the District in the form of Certificates of Participation. 
 
The Certificates of Participation bear interest at 4.75% and mature on August 1, 2028. Principal and interest 
payments are due semi-annually on February 1st and August 1st in the amount of $117,007. The balance at June 30, 
2011 is $2,760,088. 
 


Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total 


2012 104,131$              129,882$              234,013$              


2013 109,136                124,877                234,013                
2014 114,382                119,632                234,014                
2015 119,879                114,134                234,013                
2016 125,641                108,372                234,013                


2017-2021 724,806                445,260                1,170,066             
2022-2026 916,560                253,506                1,170,066             
2027-2029 545,553                39,479                  585,032                


Total 2,760,088$           1,335,142$           4,095,230$           


 
Note 6: Operating Leases 
 
The District has entered into an operating lease arrangement as lessee for the District offices. The terms of the lease 
is for five years with an option to extend for seven, one year periods. The initial five year lease expired on July 31, 
2004. The District’s current monthly lease expense for the District offices is $2,250. 
 
The District has also entered into an operating lease arrangement as lessee for a postage machine. The term of the 
lease is five years, beginning in October 2010. The District’s current monthly lease expense for the postage machine 
is $104. 
 
On May 9, 2011, the District renegotiated the office lease. The new lease commences August 1, 2011 and expires on 
July 31, 2014, at a cost of $2,250 per month. The new lease has an option to expend for one additional term of three 
years.  
 
The total rental payments for all leasing arrangements charged to expenses were $27,339 and $28,755 for June 30, 
2011 and 2010 respectively. 
 
Note 7: Employees Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) 
 
Plan Description 
 
The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), an agent multiple-employer 
public employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement, disability benefits, annual cost-of-living 
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other 
requirements are established by state statute and local resolution. Copies of PERS’ annual financial report may be 
obtained from the Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


24 


Note 7: Employees Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued) 
 
Funding Policy 
 
All full-time District employees are eligible to participate in the system. Benefits vest after five years of service. 
District employees who retire at or after age 50, with a minimum of five years credited service, are entitled to an 
annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to percent (2.0%-at age 60) times the number 
of years service credit times their annual salary, based on the three highest paid calendar years. 
 
District employees are required to contribute 7.0% of their annual covered salary to PERS. The District makes the 
required employees’ contributions on their behalf and for their account. At June 30, 2011, the employer rate was 
11.091% of annual covered salary. The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established 
and may be amended by PERS. 
 
For 2010-2011, the District’s annual pension cost was $101,119, which was equal to the District’s required and 
actual contributions (including the employees’ portion).  The District’s annual pension costs for fiscal years ending 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 were $97,381 and $90,771, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for 
each fiscal year. 
 


Note 8: Net Assets 
 
GASB Statement No. 34 requires that the difference between assets and liabilities be reported as net assets.  Net 
assets are classified as either invested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted, or unrestricted. 
 
Net assets that are invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consist of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt.  Restricted net assets are those net assets that 
have external constraints placed on them by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other 
governments, or through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  Unrestricted net assets consist of net 
assets that do not meet the definition of invested in capital assets, net of related debt, or restricted net assets.   
 
The District maintains the majority of its cash with the Sonoma County Treasury in a general operating account, 
debt service accounts, and construction accounts. 
 
Cash restricted to long-term debt repayment is held in the debt service accounts, and cash restricted to water system 
improvements is held in the construction accounts. The restrictions arise from provisions of the General Obligation 
Bond Issues and California Safe Drinking Water Loan Contracts #58330 and #58340. 
 
Note 9:  Deferred Compensation Plans 
 
The District offers its employees two deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457. The plans are available to all employees.  The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 
mandates social security coverage for state and local government employees who are not covered by a retirement 
plan.  The plans permit employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation 
is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 


 
All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and 
all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or 
other beneficiary) held in trust by a third party administrator (ING) for the exclusive benefit of the plan 
participants and their beneficiaries as prescribed by Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (g). Accordingly, these 
assets have been excluded from the accompanying financial statements. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


25 


Note 10: Risk Management 
 
The District participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the Special District Risk 
Management Authority (SDRMA) for insurance purposes. The SDRMA is a joint powers agency formed pursuant 
to Section 6500 et seq., California Government Code, is comprised of California special districts, and agencies. The 
relationship between the District and JPA is such that the JPA is not a component of the District for financial 
reporting purposes. The SDRMA’s purpose is to jointly fund and develop programs to provide stable, efficient, and 
long term risk financing for special districts. These programs are provided through collective self-insurance; the 
purchase of insurance coverage’s; or a combination thereof. SDRMA provides general and auto liability, workers’ 
compensation, public officials’ and employees’ errors and omissions, employment practices liability, property loss, 
and boiler and machinery coverage. 
 
Note 11: Contingencies 
 
The District participated in a Federal financial assistance program for the construction and improvement to the water 
system. The program is subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantor or its representatives, the purpose 
of which is to insure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement 
which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material. 
 
The District has entered into a contract with KAT Construction for $956,007 (including change orders), for CIP 
Phase IV-B Project 2 Distribution System Improvements. As of June 30, 2011, the District has paid KAT 
Construction a total of $849,112. 
 
The District has entered into a contract with W.R. Forde Associates for $975,321 (including change orders), for CIP 
Phase IV-B Project 1 Distribution System and Storage Improvements. As of June 30, 2011, the District has paid 
W.R. Forde Associates a total of $868,861. 
 
The District has entered into a contract with W.R. Forde Associates for $221,565 (including change orders), for CIP 
Phase IV-B Project 2 Addition Distribution System Improvements. As of June 30, 2011, the District has paid W.R. 
Forde Associates a total of $138,845. 
 
Note 12: Post Retirement Health Insurance 
 
Plan Description 
  
The District provides certain health insurance benefits to retired employees in accordance with memoranda of 
understanding as follows: 
  
For employees who retire from the District after at least five (5) years of service with CalPERS and who have 
reached the age of fifty (50) years old, and who continue health insurance through a District-sponsored health 
insurance plan, the District will contribute the minimum monthly amount (as required by CalPERS) of the health 
insurance premium ($105 and $108 for the calendar year 2010 and 2011 respectively).   
  
Funding Policy 
  
The District’s policy is to contribute an amount sufficient to pay the current year’s premium.  For fiscal year 
2010-11, the District contributed $2,378, which covered current premiums, but did not include any additional 
prefunding of benefits.  Currently, there are 2 retirees who are receiving benefits. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


26 


Note 12: Post Retirement Health Insurance (Continued) 
  


Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation 
  
The District’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45’s Alternative Measurement Method allowed for employers with less than 
100 plan members.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover 
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to 
exceed thirty years.  The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal 
year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation. 
 


Annual required contribution 6,193$             
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 6,193               


Contributions made (2,378)             
Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,815               


Net OPEB obligation - beginning of fiscal year 3,815               
Net OPEB obligation - end of fiscal year 7,630$             


 
The District ‘s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for fiscal years 2009-10 and 2010-11 were as follows:  


 
Fiscal Percentage of OPEB
Year Annual Annual OPEB Obligation


Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contribution (Asset)
6/30/2010 6,085$          37% 3,815$         
6/30/2011 6,193            38% 7,630           


 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
As of June 30, 2010, the most recent Alternate Measurement Method valuation date, the plan was zero 
percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $346,811, and the actuarial value of assets 
was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $346,811. The covered payroll 
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $659,280, and the ratio of the UAAL to the 
covered payroll was 52.6 percent. 
 
The Alternate Measurement Method valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about 
the future.  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members 
to that point. The Alternate Measurement Method valuation (valuation) methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


June 30, 2011 
 


27 


Note 12: Post Retirement Health Insurance (Continued) 
  


Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
In the June 30, 2010 actuarial valuation, the actuarial assumptions included a 3.3 percent investment rate of 
return, a 75 percent continuity rate that retirees will continue to participate in CalPERS health, and an annual 
healthcare cost trend rate of 3.2 percent.  The actuarial value of assets is not applicable (no assets as of the 
initial valuation date).  The UAAL is being amortized as a flat percentage of covered payroll over thirty 
years.  The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2010 was thirty years. 







 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


 
Required Supplementary Information 


June 30, 2011 
 


28 


Other Postemployment Benefits 
 


Schedule of Funding Progress 
 


Unfunded
Actuarial Liability Annual UAAL as a


Accrued Value of (Excess Funded Covered % of
Valuation Liability Assets Assets) Status Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (a)-(b) (b)/(a) (c) [(a)-(b)]/(c)


6/30/2010 346,811$          -$                  346,811$        0.0% 659,280$        52.6%


 







29 
 


OFFICES: BEVERLY HILLS · CULVER CITY · SANTA MARIA 
 


MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF C.P.A.’S · CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS · CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS 


 


 
   


PARTNERS COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT SERVICES 
RONALD A LEVY, CPA 9107 WILSHIRE BLVD. SUITE 500 5800 E. HANNUM, SUITE E 
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210 CULVER CITY, CA  90230 
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA TEL:  310.273.2745  TEL:  310.670.2745  


 FAX: 310.670.1689 FAX:  310.670.1689   
 www.mlhcpas.com www.mlhcpas.com 


 
 


 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OV ER 


FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAT TERS  
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED   


IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 


 
Board of Directors 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Guerneville, California 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (District), as of 
and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2011.  
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal 
control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control over financial reporting.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above.  
 
We noted certain other matters that we reported to the management of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District in a separate letter dated December 20, 2011. 
 
 
  
 







30 
 
 


Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, and 
others within the entity, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties.  
 


 
 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP 
Culver City, California 
December 20, 2011 
 





		Item V-A - Accepting the FY 2010-11 Audit

		Item V-A.1 - Sweetwater Spring - Management Report 2011

		Disagreements with Management

		Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

		Other Audit Findings or Issues



		Item V-A.2 - RES 12-01 -- Accepting Audit for FYE June 30, 2011

		Item V-A.3 - FY 2010-11 Audit Report










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 5, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RIO VISTA TERRACE SADDLE 
FAILURES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on progress resolving the Rio Vista 
Terrace service connection saddle failures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
No saddles have failed since the December meeting.  We have had no direct 
communication with the contractor for the project, W.R. Forde, but have been 
apprised of communications between W.R. Forde and the saddle manufacturer.  
This item will be discussed more fully in closed session.     
 





		Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 5, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE CAPITAL DEBT REDUCTION CHARGE 
ANALYSIS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge (CDRC). 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Approximately 30 percent of the District’s annual budget is repayment of debt – 
over $ one million per year.   The District’s Flat Charge which appears on the 
annual County tax bill covers the District’s US Department of Agriculture loan 
which has an annual payment of approximately $700,000.  Other District debt 
includes payments for two State loans totaling approximately $$170,000 and 
payment for the Private Placement Loan (PPL) which was acquired in September 
2008 and has an annual payment of $234,014.   
 
In 2006 The Board decided to include in the District’s rates a Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge (CDRC) to pay for the annual State loan payments and with 
the acquisition of the PPL, the Board stated its intention of raising the CDRC to 
raise revenue to pay for that annual expense.   
 
The initial CDRC was $8 bimonthly per account, regardless of meter size or 
account type.   The water rate restructuring of 2009 changed the CDRC to reflect 
meter size and the multi-family multiplier and was increased to include 
repayment of approximately one quarter of the PPL with the understanding that 
the CDRC would increase on an annual basis as the PPL was used up.  Under the 
2009 water rate restructuring, the CDRC is treated exactly like the Base Rate – a 
fixed charge that is adjusted by meter size for commercial and public accounts 
and by the multifamily multiplier (.55 times the number of living units above the 
first unit)   
 
In the winter following the rate restructuring, in response to Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC) support for Redevelopment  
funding 75% of Capital Improvement Program project costs (the District initially 
requested 50% funding), the District promised to defer raising the CDRC.  The 
District has received 75% funding support for CIP IV-B, Projects 1 and 2 
(completed), the 2012 CIP (Monte Rio element only, Notice of Completion on 







DISCUSSION RE CAPITAL DEBT REDUCTION CHARGE 2  
January 5, 2012 
 


 


this agenda) and the 2013 CIP (in design and scheduled for construction in 
May/June 2012).  The CDRC has not been changed during the 2 years that 75% 
Redevelopment funding has been received through RRROC support.   
 
Table 1 shows the current revenue achieved by the CDRC based on the FY 2010-
2011 Operating Budget Variances and a projected CDRC should it fully cover the 
two State loans and the PPL annual payments.  Note that the annual payment 
numbers do not add up exactly because actual payments and projected revenue 
are being compared.  The analysis shows that the CDRC will need to be 
increased $7.00 per bimonthly bill for single family residential customers (with a 
multiplier for larger meters and multifamily accounts) to generate the revenue 
needed to completely cover the annual debt payments for the State loans and 
the PPL.   
 
The long-term financial planning models that have been used to show District 
funding of the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) have assumed a 3 step 
increase starting in FY 2014 (approximately 25% increases per year) of the 
CDRC to fully cover State Loan and PPL debt payments by FY 2016.   
 
 
 
Table 1.  Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) History 
and Projections 
      
State Loan Debt Annual Expense  $     170,300   
PPL Debt Annual Expense  $     234,014   
Total Annual State Loan and PPL 
Expenses  $     404,314   
      
Current CDRC  (bimonthly)*    $    9.70 
Current CDRC Revenue (FY11 
Actual)  $     235,548   
      
Revenue Needed to Fully Cover 
PPL and State Loan Expenses  $     172,009   
CDRC Increase Needed *    $    7.00 
Total CDRC*     $  16.70 
Total Projected CDRC Revenue  $     407,557   


* Single Family Residential and 5/8” Commercial and Public accounts with a multiplier for 
Commercial and Public accounts with meters larger than 5/8” and for multifamily accounts. 





		Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 5, 2012`  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2011-2012 BUDGET PROCESS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the District FY 2012-2013 
Budget process.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board in the past has approved its budget at the May meeting.  Table 1 
below identifies a calendar for the budget approval process.  Milestones 
include the Proposition 218 process which has a 45-day notice and a public 
hearing for increases in rates and fees, if necessary.  Last year, the District 
performed the Proposition 218 Notice process for two years of up to 3% 
increase on the Base Rate and Water Use Charges.  A Proposition 218 Notice 
is not necessary if any rate increase for Fiscal Year 2012-13 stays within 
those boundaries.   
 
In past years the Board President has appointed two Board Members to the 
ad hoc Budget Committee to assist the General Manager in the development 
of the budget.  Those appointments have occurred either at the December or 
January meetings.   
 
The Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) will be discussed in a separate 
Agenda item.  Any increase in the CDRC will require a Proposition 218 notice.   
 
As noted above the District performed a two-year Proposition 218 Notice for 
a water rate increase of up to 3% for the Base Rate and Water Usage 
Charges.  The first year of the 3% increases was put into effect in July 2011.  
Over the last 12 months (October 2011 Index), the Consumer Price Index for 
all Urban Consumers, San Francisco area (CPI-U) advanced 3.2 percent. 
Energy prices jumped 13.6 percent, largely the result of an increase in the 
price of gasoline. The index for all items less food and energy increased 2.4 
percent since October 2010.  A 1% increase in water rates returns annual 
revenue of approximately $18,000.   







FY 2012-2013 BUDGET PROCESS   2 
January 5, 2012 
 


 


 
Table 1.  FY 2012-2013 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  December 1, 2011 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2012 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 1, 2012 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 19, 2012 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 5, 2012 


Approve Budget 
• Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary 


May 3, 2012 


 





		Meeting Date: January 5, 2012` 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE CRYSTAL COMMUNICATIONS AND 
DISTRICT RADIOS 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive an update from the General Manager on the 
resolution of nonpayment issues with Crystal Communications and replacement of 
District radios. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None at this time 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the December Board meeting I reported on Crystal Communication’s nonpayment 
of rental payments and their lack of communication with the District on this issue 
and recommended a 180 day notice letter be sent to Crystal, to which the Board 
agreed.  On the following Friday morning I received a call from Michelle Rodriquez, 
General Manager of Crystal Communications, regarding this issue.  She apologized 
for not getting back to me sooner.  She stated that Crystal wants to continue with 
the lease on Mount Jackson and wants to put into effect a payment plan to get back 
on schedule with their payments.  She requested that Crystal be allowed to make 
two payments in December – one right away and one in mid month – and then 
present a repayment proposal in January.  After some discussion, I agreed to her 
request to do two payments in December and then present the total plan in January 
with the caution that this would be discussed at the next Board meeting – the Board 
may give me different directions. 
 
This phone agreement I had with Ms Rodriquez is different from the direction I 
proposed and the Board agreed to at the Thursday night meeting.  However, had I 
received this phone call the prior morning (Thursday, December 1), or earlier, my 
presentation to the Board on Thursday night would have been much different.  I 
would have been reporting on this discussion and hoping for Board agreement in this 
direction.    
 
We have received two payments from Crystal, as agreed, this month.  I am looking 
forward to continued communication, payments, and a repayment proposal from 
Crystal in January.   
 
Going this direction could result in possibly a two month delay in sending the 180 
day notice letter – assuming Crystal makes the December payments – if we don’t 
like the repayment proposal (or don’t get one), but may result in a successful 
continuation of the Crystal lease and their assistance in getting the District in 







Crystal Communications/Replacement of District Radios 2  
January 5, 2012 
 
compliance with the narrow banding requirement.  Crystal has provided very good 
radio service as part of the lease; the problem has been rent payments.   
 
I have made some inquiries into grants for upgrading radios – more work is needed 
there.  If we move forward in a positive direction with Crystal, I am expecting 
assistance from them in selecting the replacement components.   








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2012 CIP 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 12-2 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept the Fiscal Year (FY) 2012 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) as 
substantially complete, and to sign and record a Notice of Completion.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY 2012 CIP, which is replacement of approximately 3,100 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances on Western, Eastern and Northern Avenues and Orchard Lane and 
installation of approximately 1,000 lf of new 8 – inch main and appurtenances from B Street 
northwesterly to end of existing 8 – inch main on Foothill Drive in Monte Rio, is completed.  
The Project Engineers, Coastland Engineering (Coastland), have communicated that all 
work items have been satisfactorily completed and that executing a Notice of 
Completion is timely.  As such it is appropriate for the Board to approve Resolution 12-2 
which authorizes the General Manager to accept the Project as substantially complete, 
and to sign and record a Notice of Completion.   
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District entered into a contract with KAT Construction  
(KAT) for construction of the FY 2012 CIP on May 25, 2011 for a contract price of 
$1,067,095.00 with a projected completion date in late October 2011.  There were 
some late delays in the project, but the contractor has made a good effort to get the 
project completed.   During construction there were 4 approved change orders in the 
amount of $8,162.49.  Liquidated Damages of $16,800 were assessed from the 
contractor, KAT Construction, and deducted from the final billing.  The projected final 
total construction cost is $1,041,266.92.   
 
The Sonoma County Community Redevelopment Agency (CRDA) and Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC) supported the Foothill Road element 
of the FY 2012 CIP with $413,371.64 which is 75% of the projected $551,162.18 
construction cost for that element.  This funding support also applies to the design 
and construction management and inspection services costs of the Foothill Road 
element that were done after approval of the funding agreement with CRDA.  Total 
design and construction management and inspection services costs for the project 
were approximately $208,000.   
 
Despite the delay issues, the work done by KAT has been good and District customers 
in the affected areas are seeing better water quality, more reliable service, better fire 
protection, more consistent water flow, and paved roads where trenching was done.  
The completed project will also reduce system water losses as these areas were 
constant sources of distribution system breaks, and the affected customers will have 
fewer service interruptions due to repair of the leaks.  The neighborhoods served by this 







2012 CIP Notice of Completion  2  
January 5, 2012 
 
project have received real, long lasting improvements.  CRDA and RRROC should be 
very satisfied with the completed result meeting the goals of redevelopment.   







 
Resolution No. 12-2 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
ACCEPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2012 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 


AND TO SIGN AND RECORD A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (“District”), entered into a construction 
contract with KAT Construction (“Contractor”) on May 25, 2011 for the construction of the 
District’s Fiscal Year 2012 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) (“Project”), which is replacement 
of approximately 3,100 lf of existing main and appurtenances on Western, Eastern and Northern 
Avenues and Orchard Lane and installation of approximately 1,000 lf of new 8 – inch main and 
appurtenances from B Street northwesterly to end of existing 8 – inch main on Foothill Drive in 
Monte Rio; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project has been overseen by Coastland Engineering (Coastland), who 
provided engineering services for the District on this project; and 


 WHEREAS, Coastland informed the District on December 27, 2011, that the Project has 
been substantially completed; and 


 WHEREAS, Coastland has recommended that the District sign and record a Notice of 
Completion for the project.  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 


 1. The General Manager is hereby authorized to accept the improvements 
constructed as part of the Project.  


2. The General Manager is authorized to sign and record a Notice of Completion 
upon receipt of all necessary completion documentation.   


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on January 5, 2012, by the 
following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 





		Item V-F - 2012 CIP NOC

		Item V-F.1 Res 12-2 2012 CIP Notice of Completion






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 5, 2012  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in November were 20,299 units 


(46.6 AF, Guerneville cycle) and production was 52.7 AF.  Compared to one 
year ago, sales and production this November were less (47.8 AF and 58.8 
AF, respectively).    Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving average since 
September 2006, data are available back to May 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  In November we had 11 total leaks and spent 42.25 man-hours on 


them.   Those are similar amounts in leaks and man-hours compared to the 
prior month and a similar amount of leaks but less in man-hours compared 
to November one year ago (12 leaks, 72 man-hours).  Figure 2 is continued 
showing service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.  
The curves have flattened out a bit this month as the totals from a year ago 
were similar.       


 
4. The rainy season is here, but who can tell?   Figure 3 is the cumulative 


annual Guerneville rainfall starting in October.  We only received an official 
.3 inches in December in Guerneville (at the time of this report), and I don’t 
recall even that much.  The cumulative curve for this year has dropped 
below the 2008-2009 curve – a drought year (but it’s still early).       


 
5. 2012 CIP:  The Notice of Completion is on this agenda.       


 
6. Toilet Rebate Program:  There were 2 toilet rebates issued in December.  


A total of 73 rebates have been approved. 
 


7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were three in-house projects 
reported for December requiring 59.25 man-hours.  The largest project was 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
January 5, 2012 


the relocation of 190 feet of main between the Santa Rosa Booster and the 
Crespo Tank on Santa Rosa Avenue.  The other projects were service line 
replacements on Old Monte Rio Road and Redwood Drive.           


 
8. Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) Water Rights Permit Revision 


Protest.  I have exchanged emails with SCWA staff regarding a meeting to 
discuss and review the permit revision efforts and its relationship to ongoing 
analysis.  No meeting has been scheduled yet.     


 
9. Plastiras Claim Litigation.  The Plastiras Claim litigation, litigation pursued 


by Mr. Basil Plastiras after the rejection of his claim for $4500 in damages 
due to mud flow flooding of his property during a March 2011 storm, was 
settled for $2,000.  This litigation was handled by the District’s insurance 
carrier, Special Districts Risk Management Association (SDRMA).   


   
10. Gantt Chart:   January in the Gantt Chart shows the start of the 


annual budget process with staff preparing a draft budget.  The Notice of 
Completion for the FY 2012 CIP is on this agenda.            


 
 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
January 5, 2012 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Dec-
06


Mar-
07


Jun-
07


Sep-
07


Dec-
07


Mar-
08


Jun-
08


Sep-
08


Dec-
08


Mar-
09


Jun-
09


Sep-
09


Dec-
09


Mar-
10


Jun-
10


Sep-
10


Dec-
10


Mar-
11


Jun-
11


Sep-
11


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks
Service Breaks
Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2012


-







Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2011-12 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-11


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-11


•        Approve Budget May-11
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action


•        Approve Budget
Capital Projects


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
St t•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
Completed
•        2012 CIP Construction Award of Contract


•        2012 CIP Construction Starts


•        2012 CIP Construction Complete


•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


2010 Urban Water Management Plan July-11 Public Hearing
Water Rights SCWA Protest SCWA Response
Building Lease


•        Lease Ends July-11
Policies and Procedures


•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 



